HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate

Consolidated Financial Statements Year ended September 30, 2023



1835 Market Street, 3rd Floor Philadelphia, PA 19103

215/567-7770 | bbdcpa.com

CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position	3
Consolidated Statement of Activities	4
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses	5
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows	6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	7
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards	13
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards	15
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS	16
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	17
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE	19
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS	22



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Boards of Directors HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate (nonprofit organizations), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate as of September 30, 2023, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and **Government Auditing Standards** will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and **Government Auditing Standards**, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
 to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
 include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
 financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
 estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
 statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate's September 30, 2022 consolidated financial statements and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited consolidated financial statements in our report dated June 27, 2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended September 30, 2022, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated financial statements from which it has been derived.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance"), is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated June 27, 2024, on our consideration of HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliates' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliates' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

BBO, LLP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2023 with comparative totals for 2022

	2023	2022
ASSETS		
Cash	\$ 135,379	\$ 348,634
Contributions receivable		
Government grants	1,523,398	2,162,591
Other	388,106	794,625
Prepaid expenses and other assets	45,609	54,902
Investments	3,614,835	3,220,643
Equipment and leasehold improvements, net	398,629	448,026
Total assets	\$ 6,105,956	\$ 7,029,421
LIABILITIES		
Line of credit	\$ 85,000	\$ -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	734,309	272,520
Deferred rent	-	289,771
Refundable advances	<u> </u>	300,000
Total liabilities	819,309	862,291
NET ASSETS		
Without donor restrictions	007.000	4 070 005
Operating	907,330	1,872,235
Board designated	3,611,611	3,220,643
Total without donor restrictions	4,518,941	5,092,878
With donor restrictions	767,706	1,074,252
Total net assets	5,286,647	6,167,130
Total liabilities and net assets	\$ 6,105,956	\$ 7,029,421

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30, 2023 with comparative totals for 2022

	Without Donor	With Donor	To	otals	
	Restrictions	Restrictions	2023	2022	
REVENUE AND SUPPORT					
Government grants	\$ 6,158,028	\$ -	\$ 6,158,028	\$ 5,162,285	
Other grants	1,698,810	-	1,698,810	2,131,383	
Contributions and fundraising	1,071,909	587,708	1,659,617	1,457,378	
In-kind contributions	4,547,918	-	4,547,918	4,694,849	
Other income	376,171	-	376,171	49,803	
Investment income (loss)	398,959	-	398,959	(630,287)	
Net assets released from restrictions	894,254	(894,254)			
Total revenue and support	15,146,049	(306,546)	14,839,503	12,865,411	
EXPENSES					
Program services					
Social services	3,570,953	-	3,570,953	3,201,755	
Legal services	9,283,810	-	9,283,810	8,173,106	
PHIILS	246,585	-	246,585	257,052	
Supporting services					
Management and general	2,008,501	-	2,008,501	818,723	
Fundraising	610,137		610,137	616,025	
Total expenses	15,719,986		15,719,986	13,066,661	
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS	(573,937)	(306,546)	(880,483)	(201,250)	
NET ASSETS					
Beginning of year	5,092,878	1,074,252	6,167,130	6,368,380	
End of year	\$ 4,518,941	\$ 767,706	\$ 5,286,647	\$ 6,167,130	

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2023 with comparative totals for 2022

	Social	Legal	PHIILS	Total Programs	Management and General	Fundraising	Tot	<u>2022</u>
PERSONNEL EXPENSES	<u>Services</u>	<u>Services</u>	FHIILS	Programs	and General	runuraising	2023	<u> 2022</u>
Salaries	\$1,451,349	\$2,836,309	\$186,922	\$ 4,474,580	\$1,026,063	\$358,851	\$ 5,859,494	\$ 3,883,282
Payroll taxes	110,502	215,850	ψ100,0 <u>2</u> 2	326,352	78,086	27,309	431,747	310,035
Retirement	113,153	221,120	_	334,273	79,992	27,976	442,241	319,852
Employee benefits	128,806	251,713	43,964	424,483	91,060	31,847	547,390	322,777
	1,803,810	3,524,992	230,886	5,559,688	1,275,201	445,983	7,280,872	4,835,946
OPERATING EXPENSES								
Case management system	-	17,370	=	17,370	14,112	-	31,482	27,630
Conferences and staff development	9,577	8,216	-	17,793	6,724	3,200	27,717	27,094
Depreciation	12,639	24,698	-	37,337	8,935	3,125	49,397	55,163
Direct assistance housing	1,326,676	11,806	=	1,338,482	32,166	16,050	1,386,698	1,131,654
Dues and subscriptions	8,293	17,618	-	25,911	12,888	2,702	41,501	26,301
Equipment rental	9,126	17,833	256	27,215	6,451	2,256	35,922	35,515
Insurance	8,148	15,922	187	24,257	5,760	2,014	32,031	27,324
Interest	-	-	-	-	16,313	-	16,313	-
Office and educational supplies	4,290	8,693	3,092	16,075	107,555	443	124,073	136,022
Other	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	9,498
Postage	572	11,581	165	12,318	18,419	40	30,777	26,651
Printing	-	738	-	738	-	-	738	20,352
Professional fees	-	956	2,900	3,856	297,793	3,012	304,661	346,134
Professional fees, in-kind	-	4,547,918	-	4,547,918	-	-	4,547,918	4,694,849
Program supplies	38,150	2,715	-	40,865	9,469	616	50,950	64,040
Purchased services	85,375	626,323	-	711,698	54,338	3,592	769,628	600,957
Rent and occupancy	128,787	246,391	8,889	384,067	68,956	31,021	484,044	565,867
Special event expense	-	400.000	-	-	502	73,144	73,646	80,669
Telephone and internet	102,987	182,228	210	285,425	62,025	22,455	369,905	255,930
Travel	32,523	17,812		50,335	10,894	484	61,713	99,065
	1,767,143	5,758,818	15,699	7,541,660	733,300	164,154	8,439,114	8,230,715
Total expenses	\$3,570,953	\$9,283,810	\$246,585	\$13,101,348	\$2,008,501	\$610,137	\$15,719,986	\$13,066,661

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30, 2023 with comparative totals for 2022

-	2023	2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		
Change in net assets	\$ (880,483)	\$ (201,250)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities		
Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on investments Depreciation	(296,764) 49,397	755,462 55,163
(Increase) decrease in Contributions receivable Prepaid expenses and other assets	1,045,712 9,293	(1,083,643) 5,338
Increase (decrease) in Accounts payable and accrued expenses Deferred rent Refundable advances	461,789 (289,771) (300,000)	45,127 23,558 300,000
Net cash used for operating activities	(200,827)	(100,245)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Purchase of investments Purchase of equipment and leasehold improvements	(97,428)	(624,185) (13,116)
Net cash used for investing activities	(97,428)	(637,301)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Advances on line of credit	85,000	
Net change in cash	(213,255)	(737,546)
CASH		
Beginning of year	348,634	1,086,180
End of year	<u>\$ 135,379</u>	\$ 348,634
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCOLSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION		
Interest paid	\$ 16,313	\$ -

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023

(1) NATURE OF BUSINESS

HIAS and Council Migration Service of Philadelphia, which is doing business as HIAS Pennsylvania. (the "Organization") is a not-for-profit organization located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania that provides aid to immigrants.

The Organization's activities are as follows:

Legal Services Division – has seven programs: 1) the immigrant youth program, 2) the immigrant survivors of domestic violence program, 3) the immigrant survivors of crime program, 4) the asylum and removal defense program, 5) the asylee integration program (formerly known as the asylee outreach program), 6) the humanitarian and crisis response program, and 7) the citizenship and family reunification program. Each of these programs provides immigration legal assistance by staff attorneys, law clerks, partially and fully accredited representatives and paralegals to immigrants and refugees of limited means. The programs also provide technical assistance to service providers and non-attorneys in the Organization and to the community at large.

Social Services Division – has four programs: 1) reception and placement (refugee resettlement), 2) immigrant health and wellness, 3) employment, and 4) education. These four programs provide case management, cultural orientation services, wellness and anti-isolation services and English language services to refugee and other federal Office of Refugee Resettlement Eligible adults and children. The services are provided by master and bachelor's level social workers, trauma informed case workers, TOEFL certified teachers, interns and volunteers.

Community Engagement Division – this division provides recruitment, training and mentoring of volunteers, both professional and non-professional. The division also provides educational programs about the work that is done, about the needs of immigrants and refugees that we serve and collects in kind donations for our clients. The services in this division are provided by experienced professionals who have worked with diverse communities and an attorney who recruits, trains and mentors attorneys to take on immigration legal matters.

Pennsylvania HIAS Indigent Immigrant Legal Services ("PHILS") is a separate section 501(c)(3) non-profit, which provides free immigration legal services to indigent individuals in Pennsylvania. HIAS Pennsylvania is the sole member of PHILS.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Organization and PHILS. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. As a result, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization and PHILS report information regarding their financial position and activities according to the following classes of net assets:

Without donor restrictions

Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions. This category also includes board designated net assets which are comprised of funds that are designated by the board to fill in short-term gaps in funding to ensure continuity of services and programs. The board designated net assets are to be adjusted each year based on board approved budgeted expenditures.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023

With donor restrictions

Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that will be satisfied by actions of the Organization and PHILS and/or the passage of time. When a restriction is satisfied, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Also included in this category are net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions that require the net assets to be maintained indefinitely while permitting the Organization and PHILS to expend the income generated in accordance with the provisions of the contribution. The Organization and PHILS did not have this type of net asset with donor restrictions as of September 30, 2023.

Fair Value Measurements of Assets and Liabilities

Generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., the "exit price") in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are those that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Organization and PHILLS. Unobservable inputs reflect the Organization and PHILLS' assumptions about the inputs market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

Level 1 – Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Organization and PHILS have the ability to access. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available in an active market, valuation of these assets and liabilities does not entail a significant degree of judgment.

Level 2 – Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 – Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable, that is, inputs that reflect the Organization and PHILS' own assumptions.

Summarized Prior-Year Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2022, from which the summarized information was derived.

Accounting Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP, management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could vary from those estimates.

Contributions Receivable

Contributions receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from balances outstanding at year-end. Accounts are written off when they are determined to be uncollectible based upon management's assessment of individual accounts. Management believes all accounts were collectible and did not provide an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Interest is not charged on outstanding balances.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023

Equipment and Leasehold Improvements

Equipment and leasehold improvements are carried at cost if purchased and at fair value at the date of donation if contributed. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Investments

Investments in equity and fixed income securities with readily determinable fair values are reported at fair value, as determined by quoted market prices, with gains and losses included in the consolidated statement of activities. Dividend and interest income is recorded as earned.

The Organization invests in a professionally-managed portfolio that contains various types of investments (**See Note 3**). Such investments are exposed to market and credit risk. Due to the level of risk associated with such investments, and the level of uncertainty related to changes in the value of such investments, it is at least reasonably possible that the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements could change materially in the near term.

Leases

Effective with the implementation of ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) and subsequent amendments to the initial guidance (collectively, Topic 842) on October 1, 2022, operating leases are recorded as right-of-use-assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position. Leases with a term of twelve months or less are considered short term leases and are accounted for as an expense in the statement of activities as rental payments are incurred.

Operating lease assets represent the Organization's right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent its obligation to make lease payments arising for the lease. Operating lease assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. The Organization uses the implicit rate when readily determinable. When the lease does not provide an implicit rate, the Organization uses a secured borrowing rate based on the information available at commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments.

At September 30, 2023, the Organization does not have any material lease commitments beyond 12 months.

Grants and Contributions

Grants and contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or with donor restrictions depending on the absence or existence and nature of any donor restrictions. Donor-restricted grants and contributions whose restrictions are satisfied in the same period are reported as net assets without donor restrictions.

Unconditional grants and contributions are recognized as revenue when the related promise to give is received. Conditional grants and contributions are recognized as revenue when the conditions are satisfied.

Income Taxes

The Organization and PHILS are exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. However, income from certain activities not directly related to their tax-exempt purpose may be subject to taxation as unrelated business income.

The Organization and PHILS qualify for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) and have been classified as organizations other than a private foundation under Section 509(a)(1).

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023

GAAP requires entities to evaluate, measure, recognize and disclose any uncertain income tax positions taken on their tax returns. GAAP prescribes a minimum threshold that a tax position is required to meet in order to be recognized in the financial statements. The Organization and PHILS believe that they had no uncertain tax positions as defined in GAAP

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various program and supporting services have been presented on a functional basis in the consolidated statements of activities and functional expenses. Expenses directly attributable to a specific functional area are reported as expenses of that functional area. Expenses not directly attributable to a specific functional area are allocated. Significant expenses that are allocated include personnel expenses, rent and occupancy, and telephone and internet, which are allocated based on estimates of time and effort.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Organization and PHILS to concentrations of credit risk are cash and contributions receivable. The Organization and PHILS maintain cash deposits at a high-quality bank. At times, such deposits may exceed federally-insured limits. Contributions receivable are expected to be collected in 2024.

Reclassifications

Certain items previously reported in the prior-year summarized comparative totals have been reclassified to conform to the current-year consolidated financial statement presentation.

(3) INVESTMENTS

Investments at September 30, 2023 and 2022, consisted of a balanced index fund which invests roughly 60% in equities and 40% in bonds by tracking two indexes that represent broad barometers for the U.S. equity and U.S. taxable bond markets. This fund is measured at fair value using Level 1 (quoted prices in active markets) valuation inputs.

Investment income (loss) for the year ended September 30, was comprised of the following:

	<u>2023</u>	2022
Interest and dividends	\$102,195	\$ 125,175
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss)	296,764	<u>(755,462</u>)
	<u>\$398,959</u>	<u>\$(630,287)</u>

(4) EQUIPMENT AND LEASHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

Equipment and leasehold improvements at September 30, 2023 and 2022 consisted of the following:

	<u>2023</u>	<u>2022</u>
Computer equipment	\$ 65,565	\$ 65,565
Office equipment	17,712	17,712
Leasehold improvements	<u>525,677</u>	525,677
	608,954	608,954
Accumulated depreciation	<u>(210,325</u>)	(160,928)
	<u>\$ 398,629</u>	<u>\$ 448,026</u>

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023

Depreciation was \$49,397 and \$55,163 for the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

(5) NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

	Balance			Balance
	September 30, 2022	<u>Additions</u>	Releases	September 30, 2023
Subject to expenditure				
for specified purposes or periods				
Legal services	\$ 406,786	\$476,708	\$(376,788)	\$506,706
Path to Self Sufficiency	171,532	-	(171,532)	-
Immigrant Wellness	29,872	70,000	(29,872)	70,000
Other	70,437	16,000	(70,437)	16,000
Available for future periods	395,625	25,000	(245,625)	175,000
	<u>\$1,074,252</u>	<u>\$587,708</u>	<u>\$(894,254</u>)	<u>\$767,706</u>

(6) LINE OF CREDIT

In March 2021, the Organization obtained a \$500,000 bank credit line, which bears interest at a variable rate per annum based on the *Wall Street Journal* U.S. Prime rate. The agreement is effective until such parties agree in writing to terminate the agreement. At September 30, 2023, the Organization had advances of \$85,000 on the line of credit.

(7) OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases its primary administrative office under a non-cancelable operating lease which expires in September 2032. The Organization believes that the landlord is in default of the lease and has been asked by the landlord to consider vacating the premises. The Organization stopped paying rent in July 2023 is currently evaluating options for new space. Rent expense for the office was \$426,670 and \$502,602 for 2023 and 2022, respectively. As a result of the landlord being in default, the Organization recognized income from the reversal of its deferred rent of \$289,771, which is included in other income in the 2023 consolidated statement of activities.

(8) IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS

Each year, a substantial number of legal specialists contribute significant amounts of their time to the Organization, and such services are reflected in the financial statements under revenue as in-kind contributions, and under expenses as professional fees in-kind, using estimated fair market rates. Since most of these services represent contributed legal time, the total amounts may fluctuate widely from year to year. During the years ended September 30, 2023 and 2022, in-kind servers totaled \$4,547,918 and \$5,694,849, respectively.

(9) RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a 403(b) plan covering all eligible employees. The plan allows eligible employees to defer a portion of their compensation, subject to the limitations in the Internal Revenue Code. The Organization makes a 5% matching contribution to the plan for the eligible employees' elective deferrals. The Organization's contributions to the plan were \$442,241 and \$319,852 for 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022

(10) LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The following reflects the Organization and PHILS' financial assets as of the consolidated statement of financial position date, which have been reduced by financial assets not available within one year.

Cash	\$ 135,379
Contributions receivable	1,911,504
Investments	3,614,835
Total financial assets	5,661,718
Less: financial assets not available for general operations within one year	
Restricted by donor for specific purposes	(592,708)
Board designated net assets	<u>(3,661,611</u>)
Total financial assets available within one year	\$ 1.407.399

Liquidity Management

HIAS Pennsylvania's goal is generally to maintain financial assets available to meet 90 days of operating expenses.

As part of its liquidity plan, the Finance Committee performs a monthly review of its consolidated financial statements and cash flows with management and the accountant. Excess cash is invested in short-term investments, primarily money market accounts, where it is available to be drawn upon as necessary.

(11) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 27, 2024, the date on which the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. No material subsequent events have occurred since September 30, 2023 that require recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended September 30, 2023

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Program Title	Assistance Listing <u>Number</u>	Pass-Through Grantor's <u>Number</u>	<u>Expenditures</u>	Passed Through to <u>Subrecipients</u>
U.S. Department of Justice				
Direct Program				
Legal Assistance for Victims	16.524	N/A	\$ 17,333	<u>\$ - </u>
Pass-Through Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency				
Crime Victim Assistance	16.575	33150	582,926	236,184
Total U.S. Department of Justice			600,259	236,184
U.S. Department of State				
Pass-Through HIAS, Inc.				
U.S. Refugee Admissions Program	19.510	RPFY2316	700,892	<u> </u>
U.S. Department of Treasury				
Pass-Through Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency				
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds	21.027	39939	374,235	<u>195,153</u>
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services				
Pass-Through Pennsylvania Department of Human Services				
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement Designee Administered Programs	93.566	4100084128	956,427	-
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement Designee Administered Programs	93.566	4100084097	141,094	-
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement Designee Administered Programs	93.566	4100093097	70,845	
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement Designee Administered Programs	93.566	4100091898	70,644	
			1,239,010	
Pass-Through Central Susquehanna Intermediate Unit				
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement Designee Administered Programs	93.566	ARSI S2S	84,042	
Total under ALN 93.566			1,323,052	

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended September 30, 2023

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Program Title	Assistance Listing <u>Number</u>		Expenditures	Passed Through to <u>Subrecipients</u>
Pass-Through HIAS, Inc.				
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Voluntary Agency Programs	93.567	MGFY2316-01	706,596	
Pass-Through HIAS, Inc.				
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants	93.576	PCFY2316	192,509	-
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants	93.576	PCUKFY2316	28,139	-
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants	93.576	PCAFFT2316	454,911	-
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants	93.576	RCPFY2316	80,000	
Total under ALN 93.576			755,559	
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services			2,785,207	
U.S. Department of Homeland Security				
Direct Program				
Citizenship Education and Training	97.010	N/A	126,750	48,734
Pass-Through City of Philadelphia Office of Homeless Services				
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program	97.024	Phase 39	50,000	-
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program	97.024	Phase 40	29,169	-
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program	97.024	Phase ARPA-R	50,000	
			129,169	-
Pass-Through HIAS, Inc.				
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program	97.024		6,760	<u> </u>
Total under ALN 97.024			135,929	
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security			262,679	48,734
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards			<u>\$4,723,272</u>	<u>\$480,071</u>

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended September 30, 2023

(1) GENERAL INFORMATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activities in all the federal award programs of HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate (the "Organization"). All financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as financial awards passed through other governmental and nonprofit agencies, are presented on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

(2) BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited to reimbursement.

(3) RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Federal awards expenditures are reported on the statements of activities and functional expenses. In certain programs, the expenditures reported in the basic financial statements may differ from the expenditures reported in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards due to program expenditures exceeding grant or contract budget limitations which are not included as federal awards.

(4) INDIRECT COSTS

The Organization has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year ended September 30, 2023

Finding 2022-001

COMPLIANCE

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of State

Federal Program: U.S. Refugee Admissions Program – ALN 19.510

Condition

Salaries and wages of certain employees totaling approximately \$80,000 were charged or allocated to the major program based on the budget rather than actual time spent.

Recommendation

We recommend the Organization implement controls over time and effort reporting such that the actual amount of time spent on each funding source is identified.

Current Status

Management agrees with the finding and has taken corrective action by purchasing software which will track the employee's actual time. This is a repeat finding, see finding 2023-001. This software was placed in service on October 1, 2023, three months after the Organization was made of aware of the finding.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Boards of Directors HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate (the "*Organization*") (non-profit organizations), which comprise the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2023, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 27, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the Organization's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BBO, LLP.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania June 27, 2024



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate's (the "Organization") compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Organization's major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2023. The Organization's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended September 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. *Code of Federal Regulations* Part 200, *Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards* (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Organization's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Organization's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, *Government Auditing Standards*, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Organization's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, *Government Auditing Standards*, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
 perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
 evidence regarding the Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
 performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
- Obtain an understanding of the Organization's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order
 to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
 control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
 opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such
 opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item **2023-001**. Our opinion on the major federal program is not modified with respect to this matter.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Organization's response to the noncompliance finding identified in our compliance audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we did identify a deficiency in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2023-001 to be a significant deficiency.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Organization's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our compliance audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Organization's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

BBO, LLP.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania June 27, 2024

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year ended September 30, 2023

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

- 1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements of HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate were presented in accordance with GAAP.
- 2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the independent auditor's report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
- 3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate were disclosed during the audit.
- 4. A significant deficiency in internal control over major federal award programs disclosed during the audit is reported in the independent auditor's report on compliance for each major federal program and on internal control over compliance required by the uniform guidance.
- 5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award program expresses an unmodified opinion.
- 6. There is an audit finding that is required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR Section 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.
- 7. The programs tested as major programs were:
 - U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
 Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement Designee Administered Programs ALN 93.566
 Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants ALN 93.576
- 8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was \$750,000.
- 9. HIAS Pennsylvania and Affiliate did qualify as a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS—FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS—MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

Finding 2023-001

COMPLIANCE

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Federal Programs: Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement Designee Administered Programs –

ALN 93.566 and Refugee and Entrant Assistant Discretionary Grants - ALN 93.576

Type of Finding: Noncompliance - Significant deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year ended September 30, 2023

Criteria

The Uniform Guidance requires charges to federal awards for salaries and wages be based on records that accurately reflect the work performed. The Organization is responsible for having internal controls to ensure compliance with this provision.

Condition

Salaries and wages of employees were charged or allocated to the major program based on the budget rather than actual time spent.

Questioned Costs

Unknown

Cause

Time and effort reporting did not capture the actual time worked on specific grants for certain employees.

Effect

Because the actual time spent on the major program by certain employees was not maintained the major program could have been over or under charged by using the budgeted amount.

Recommendation

We recommend the Organization implement controls over time and effort reporting such that the actual amount of time spent on each funding source is identified.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

Management agrees with the finding and has taken corrective action by purchasing and implementing software which will track the employee's actual time spent. This software was placed in service on October 1, 2023.